AGENDA FOR

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT

Solicitation Number DABJ25-03-R-0019

For

Custodial Services at Fort Lewis, WA

October 22, 2003

1.  The meeting was held at Stone Education Center, Auditorium A-101 at 9 AM on October 22, 2003.  Carole Benson started the meeting with an introduction of Government Personnel.  The sign-in sheet was discussed and attendees were advised that a copy of the sheet would be attached to the minutes and posted on the Directorate of Contracting (DOC) WEB site.  Attendees were also advised that the meeting was being recorded.   

2.   Carole Benson gave a Power Point presentation.  A copy of the presentation will be posted on the DOC site.  An overview of the conference agenda was presented.  The presentation covered the following information:  

· The conferees were advised that (1) Remarks and explanations at the conference shall not qualify the terms of the solicitation, (2) Terms of the solicitation and specifications remain unchanged unless the solicitation is amended in writing, and (3) that there was an amendment planned.    

· This is a Firm Fixed Price Services Contract.  This procurement will be awarded to the firm that offers the best value to the Government.  The Government intends to award without discussion, therefore offeror’s should submit their best proposal initially.     

· The purpose of this conference and site visit is to eliminate possible misunderstandings of the terms of the solicitation.  

· There will be a question and answer period during the conference.  Request you preface each question with your name and company name if presented orally.  Due to the scope of this requirement the Government would prefer that you submit your questions in writing so that the questions and answers can be compiled and provided to all possible offeror’s as part of the minutes to this conference.  Questions from the site visit shall be e-mailed or faxed to Carole Benson at bensonc@lewis.army.mil or (253) 966-3518.  These questions should be submitted by close of business on October 24, 2003.  The minutes, attendance sheet, and questions/answers will be posted to the DOC WEB site.  

· Four buildings have been selected for the site visit today.  Following the DOC presentation the Public Works Project Manager will conduct a Power Point presentation of a representative selection of other buildings.  

· Special attention was given to the following provisions and each was discussed:

252.204-7004, Required Central Contractor Registration (Nov 2001) 

252.219-7009, Section 8(a) Direct Award (Mar 2002) 

52.222-4029, Past Performance Information

52.212-3 (Jun 2003) Alternate I (Apr 2002) and 252.212-7000 (Nov 1995), Offeror Representations and Certifications-Commercial Items

52.212-2, Evaluation-Commercial Items (Jan 1999)

· Special attention was given to the following clauses and each was discussed:

52.212-4, Contract Terms and Conditions-Commercial Items (Feb 2002)

52.111-4002, Contract Period

52.111-4015, Invoicing and 52.222-4034, Credit Card

52.228-5 and 52.111-4039, Insurance-Work on a Government Installation (Jan 1997)

52.221-5 with 52.222-42, Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires (May 1989) 

· Appendices.  Performance Work Statement (PWS) Discussion.  The PWS and all Appendices are binding documents and will become part of the contract.  All standards referenced in the PWS are based upon the Building Owners and Managers Association (BOMA) standards.  There are four categories of cleaning required.  The PWS gives the minimum performance thresholds.

· Attachments.  Attachments are provided for information only and do not become part of the ensuing contract.  The different attachments were discussed.  Attendees were told that due to different software programs and individual capabilities, the Government is aware that some of the documents in the solicitation may not be viewable in full.  A separate attachment has been placed on the DOC WEB site with these documents in excel format so that the offers are given another venue in which to access them.  

· Proposal Format.  This is a performance based service contract (PBSC).  This is the first time this service has been procured as a PBSC.  The PWS and its performance thresholds state the Government’s performance objective.  The successful contractor will state how they will achieve that objective as part of their technical proposal. Highlights of the different documents to be provided to the Government were discussed and the offerors were referred to the solicitation for complete details.  

· Basis of Award.  The basis of award was discussed and the offerors were referred to the solicitation for complete details.  Attendees were told that it is the Government’s intent to award on initial offers without discussions, and that their proposal submission should have the most favorable terms from a price and technical standpoint.  

· Proposals are currently due to DOC not later than 2 PM on November 14, 2003.  (After Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Visit Note:  An amendment will be issued with a new due date for proposal.)  Ensure that all parts of your proposal are submitted as requested.  The government uses the atomic clock found at http://www.time.gov to factor the closing time of the proposal.  Late proposals will not be accepted.  Proposals can be submitted in person or by mail type delivery to DOC, Building 2015, MS-19, Room 153, Fort Lewis, WA 98433-9500.  Proposals should be marked with the information detailed in the proposal format section of the solicitation.  It is the responsibility of each offeror to ensure that their proposal reaches DOC in a timely manner.    

3. A 10-minute break was called.  

4. At the end of the break, the podium was given to the Project Manager, Bill Byers.  Mr. Byers Power Point presentation is posted on the DOC WEB site.  The presentation consisted of digital photographs of various types of buildings at Fort Lewis.  Due to the inability to visit any of the Child Development Centers (CDC’s) in person while the children are present, Mr. Byers presented several slides of various areas in the CDC’s.  Mr. Byers also had pictures of World War II buildings; various types of bathrooms in many others, The Carey Theater, and other buildings intended to provide offerors with a sound basis of knowledge of the varied buildings and the structural conditions in them so that the offerors would be able to prepare their proposals.  There were several minor questions about the buildings that Mr. Byers or Georgian Kauanoe (QAE) answered.  It was requested that the attendees present any complicated or detailed questions in writing.    

5.   Before the attendees were given a tour of the Education Center by Mrs. Kauanoe, each was given a map of the buildings to be visited and cell phones numbers in case they became lost.   20 minutes was given for the attendees to reach each new site.  All attendees were kept in a group for their tour of each site.   After the Education Center, we went to Waller Hall (Welcome Center), Grandstaff Library, and the tour ended at Building 2015.  

6. Questions and Answers are attached at enclosure 1.  The attendance sheet is attached at enclosure 2.  
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As a result of these questions and other administrative matters there will be an amendment issued to the RFP.  It is estimated that this amendment will be issued no later than 05 November 2003.  The due date of proposals will be changed as a result of the amendment.  

Questions are in black, answers are in blue.

Section 1

 These questions/answers are in the contractual arena.

1. In “52.216-18, Ordering” there is reference to issuance of task orders by the individuals or activities designated in the Schedule.  However, in “52.11-4009, Oral Task Orders (a)” it says Task Orders will be issued by the Contracting Officer.  What is the “Schedule” and aren’t these conflicting statements?  

The “SCHEDULE” refers to all of the CLINS.  The two clauses can be confusing.  52.216-18 refers to individuals or activities being authorized and if they are, that information will be provided in the schedule.  No such authorization is provided; therefore, clause 52.111-4009 provides the contractor with the information of who is authorized to issue task orders.     

2. Must the contractor be ISO 14001 certified?  

No, the successful contractor does not have to be ISO 14001 certified, but this information can be indicated in your proposal.  
3. What security and/or background checks are required of employees, particularly those working in Child Development facilities?  If special checks are required, may we assume that these persons are to be treated as allocated to only those areas? 

Background checks are necessary if employees have contact with the children in the CDCs.  The current contract services the CDC’s at night so that employees do not have to have the background checks.   

4. Are there health screenings and inoculations required for those employees working in the Child Development facilities?  The second part of question 8 above also applies if affirmative. 

Workers in the child development centers would need health screening and inoculations, unless the successful contractor has this work done at night when no children as present.   

5. “52.11-4009, Oral Task Orders”, (applicable to CLINS: 0002, 0002AA, 0002AB, 0002AC, 1002, 1002AA, etc. confirmed by issuance of SF 1449 within 5 Working days.  What is the recourse if there are oral task orders that do not conform to the SF1449 when that arrives after the task is started or completed? 

Clause :52.111-4009, “Oral Task Orders.”  An oral task order would only be authorized by the Contracting Officer (CO) and since the CO is also the person who would sign the written task order.   

6. In “42.11-4004, Electronic Commerce, …the Contractor shall communicate with the Government utilizing electronic mail”.  Does this mean that the proposal, reports, requests, and all other formal and informal communications must be transmitted electronically?  Are verbal communications exempt?  

All pre-award communications shall be submitted as specified in the solicitation in the section titled “Proposal Format”.  No emailed or faxed proposals will be accepted.
Clause: 52.111-4004, “Electronic Commerce.”  

The intent of this clause is not to limit communications to only E-mail.  Electronic mail is part of Electronic Commerce, which is defined, in part, as electronic techniques for accomplishing business transactions including electronic mail or messaging, World Wide Web technology, facsimile, and telephone.    

We encourage most Post-award communications be accomplished via email. This does not exempt verbal communication.

7. When is “52.204-4, Recycle Paper” preferred over “Electronic Commerce” (see question 13 above)?  Also this clause references a requirement to use double sided paper; does this mean our proposal must be printed two sided on recycle paper?  Specifically where does this clause apply? 

Clause 52.204-4 states in part:  (b) In accordance with Section 101 of Executive Order 13101 of September 14, 1998, Greening the Government through Waste Prevention, Recycling, and Federal Acquisition, the Contractor is encouraged to submit paper documents, such as offers, letters, or reports, that are printed or copied double-sided on recycled paper that meet minimum content standards specified in Section 505 of Executive Order 13101, when not using electronic commerce methods to submit information or data to the Government.
The clause also defines the recycled content to be 30% or if this poses a hardship to the contractor, 20%.  

8. In “52.333-4034 (d)” there is mention of a prompt payment discount.  What is “prompt payment discount offered on this contract”:?

Clause: 52.222-4034, “Payment by Government Commercial Credit Card.”   The prompt payment discount applies if the successful contractor, as part of its offer, includes a discount to the Government for payments made in less than the standard net 30.  For example, if your company offers a discount of say 2% in 10 days or net 30; and the Government paid you in 10 days, we would automatically reduce the payment amount by 2%.  If the Government chooses to forego the discount, we would pay you in the net 30 days.   This discount may be part of the contract itself or it may be offered on invoices by your company.  

Clause 52.222-4034 is informing you that the Government will pay this contract by credit card and that if your company normally offers a discount, that you may offer the same discount when the invoice is paid by credit card since the payment will be made in less than the standard 30 days.   As a rule with contracts paid by credit card, you submit an invoice to the Directorate of Contracting (DOC),  the card holder will then contact you to authorize the payment by credit card.  If all documents are in order, per 52.222-4034, your payment should be processed within 36 hours of receipt by the credit company.  
9. May information be presented in the proposal Appendix and/or attachment in single spacing and/or a smaller font than the double-spaced 12-point body of the technical proposal?   


Proposal shall be submitted within the spacing, fonts, and page limitations identified in “Proposal Format” section of the solicitation.  
10. Is the current contract an 8(a) set-aside and if so, was it competitively bid or sole-sourced?

The current contract was awarded as an 8(a) set-aside.  It was competed.  

11. Is the current contractor working under the proposed performance-based format that is in this solicitation?

As stated at the pre-proposal conference, the current contract is not a performance-based contract.  This procurement action is the first time that Fort Lewis has solicited for custodial services in the performance-based format.  

12. What security clearances are required for contractor employees working on the base?

No special security clearances are required with the exception of day workers in the CDC’s (if used).  Those additional requirements are not security related, they are background related.  

13. What type of uniforms and/or identification are contractor employees required to wear?

Each employee will be required to obtain and identification badge.  Badge requirements are discussed in Clause 52.111-4017.  Clause 52.111-4045 also addresses the employees the contractor is allowed to hire.  There are no specific requirements in the PWS concerning uniforms.  

14. Is there a collective bargaining agreement in place or contemplated?

The current contract does not have a collective bargaining.  The Government cannot contemplate collective bargaining agreements, as we are the contractor, employees of the contractor or a union.

15. What is the current annual value of the existing custodial contract?

Public information concerning the current contract is available on the DOC WEB site under current contracts.  Any information other than that listed must be requested utilizing a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request.   

16. Reference: Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires, 52.22-42. Job Categories: Inspector/Quality Control (99240) and Lead Janitor (11150).

Question:  Inspector/Quality Control (99240) and Lead Janitor (11150) are not on wage determination number 1994-2567 provided in the solicitation.

Clause 52.212-5 section 52.222-42 will be changed in the amendment.  Exempt and Non-covered employees were inadvertently included due to an administrative error.   The only covered employees on the current contract are Janitors.  

Section II  

Questions/answers in this section pertain to the PWS/Appendices/Attachments or other areas.

1. Relative to 4.5, what kind of advanced notice do we get for re-performing?  If we are notified minutes before closing we could go into overtime:  Isn’t a better option to give 4 hours notice so items reported in the afternoon can be corrected the next morning?  

First of all, there should not be any re-performance if the contractor has an adequate quality control program.  The contractor is responsible for the quality control on this contract and is expected to catch the majority of these problems.   But if there is a need for re-performance, the contractor must re-perform before the next servicing to correct the deficiencies at no additional cost to the Government. 

2. In 1.2, 3.2.b and elsewhere throughout the document there is reference to approvals but nowhere is written approvals mentioned.  Aren’t all approvals to be written?  Also in 1.3 and elsewhere there is the same issue relative to written agreements not specified. 

These paragraphs should reference “written approvals”.  This will be corrected in the Amendment.  

3. In 1.4.4 who has authority and in what format (verbal or written) will notification be given?  

Contracting Officer has the authority to make any changes to the contract whether verbally or written. Such changes are normally made in writing, only an emergency situation would necessitate a verbal change.  The Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR) has authority to enforce the requirements of the contract and makes suggestions to the CO.
4. In 1.6.2, by replacement do you only mean, “put back to original screen” or do you also mean to buy and replace with new screens if necessary?  If purchased by us, is this reimbursable?  

Put back original unless damaged by contractor, if the contractor damages the screen the contractor will incur the costs of replacing the screen.  This cost is not passed to the Government.

5. In 3.1.1(a) what happens if we inadvertently damage vegetation?  Who has to fix, when and at who’s cost?  In (b) what is guideline for “promptly”?  

If the contractor causes damage, the contractor will be liable for damages at no additional cost to the Government.  Promptly is defined as in a timeframe that an average person would consider reasonable.  Paragraph 3.1.1 in the PWS discusses this issue.   

6. The language in 4.4.2 is confusing.  In one line it states: “When overall monthly performance for a required service meets or exceeds the performance threshold, quality control is satisfactory”.  Then the next sentence it states: “Only the original inspection results by the Government will be used to make this evaluation.”  One refers to overall, the next refers to original, this is a conflict in terms.  

For each performance period, the Government will use the original inspections to determine if the lot is acceptable or not. If a unit of service is found unacceptable on the first inspection and was reperformed and found satisfactory, the Government will use the first inspection (original) on that lot to determine that the lot is unsatisfactory for period (usually a month).  

7. In 4.4.4 does the last sentence refer to regularly scheduled services or would emergency or additional general cleaning (CLIN 0002AA etc) also apply?  

This paragraph would apply to all. 

8. In 4.17.2 will the CO provide the contractor something in writing stating that a specific deletion or addition will be made?  

If this situation occurs the Contracting Office will issue a modification.  

9. Is there a map with the buildings to be cleaned identified by number, function and showing the proximity to each other available?

A map of Fort Lewis will be provided to the successful contractor, but no map exists with the information requested (e.g. function and proximity).  The contractor will be able to factor the proximity when given the map.  The function of any building is subject to change throughout the contract.   Activities may move in or out.  The PWS has a variance of 10% to accommodate these fluctuations. Any changes outside the 10% variance will be addressed by a Request for Equitable Adjustment or a bi-lateral modification.   
10. What has been the historic frequency and square footage of Emergency/Additional/After Hours Cleaning Services during the last five years?  

On the current contract Emergency Work is priced and ordered by the hour.  On the new contract this work is structured to be priced and calculated by the square foot.  Historically we do not have this information by square foot.  On the current contract, typically we have thirty hours set aside per month for Emergency work.  Updated and available information will be located in the revised Appendix B when the amendment is issued.

11. Does the government provide an office and/or inside storage space or must the contractor provide this through the use of temporary buildings within the Lay Down Area referenced in PWS 3.1.1?  If the contractor must provide, what does the current contractor use for office and storage space? 

The Government does not provide an office or any storage space at the lay-down area, the current contractor has their own trailer with a connex for storage.  Some buildings do have storage areas available but this (storage closets, etc) is not a guaranteed by the Government.  Building occupants have first priority on the use of any area.  Some buildings have a supply closet and some of these are shared with the building occupants.

12. How often is a revised inventory of hazardous materials (4.18.2) to be provided once the initial inventory is provided?   

The inventory will be continually updated as needed when items are added/deleted.

13. In Appendix D under Category 1, Clean Interior Window, and Category 3, Clean Exterior Window a frequency is not mentioned nor is it covered under *Separate Contract Bid item.  What is the intent by leaving the items blank?  

The areas were left blank inadvertently.  This was an oversight and a new Appendix D will be issued as part of an Amendment.  Category 1 and 4 will have interior windows cleaned weekly.  Category 4 Exterior windows will be cleaned Semi annually, Category 1 Exterior windows will not be required to be Cleaned. To answer second part of question there is no requirements item for cleaning interior or exterior windows.

14. Is the monitoring plan for each service (1.1) to be a part of the QC Plan, if not, what is it?  How does this relate to the Service Delivery Plan?  

Yes, the monitoring plan is for each service and part of the QC plan.  

15. In 1.1.3 there is reference to a valid customer complaint and in 4.5 there is Validated Customer Complaint.  What is the definition of valid vs. Validated?  What constitutes a valid or Validated customer complaint:  Who makes that determination and how is it officially communicated?  

A valid complaint is a complaint received from a customer within scope of service in the PWS.  A complaint becomes validated when the Government confirms performance is unacceptable as required in the PWS and requires re-performance as stated in paragraph 4.5.

16. Does the cleaning of interior windows consist of just the partitions, or including the windows as well?  Is it possible that you could give a detailed description?  

 Maintain all interior glass and mirrors frames, partitions, casings, and sills
 Not to exceed ten (10) feet high.

17. What is the estimated population for the buildings to be serviced (approximately 150) and does that number include estimated visitors?  

We do not have a population count for any of these buildings.  The contractor should consider all of the buildings to be fully utilized at all times.  This information cannot be provided since it is constantly changing.  


18. In order to competitively bid a performance-based solicitation, historical data such as carpet vs. tile is of significant importance (i.e. Periodics).  Is there any historical data in the current prescriptive contract that would benefit all parties bidding on this solicitation?

No, there is no historical data in the current contract.  The amendment will state the square feet for the category 4 buildings.  There is no other historical data that addresses this matter.


19. In the event the ceiling light acrylic lens (cover) is broken during cleaning, who is responsible for purchasing the replacement?  Does the base maintain a supply of replacements? (these become very brittle with age)

If the damage is caused by contractor negligence, the contractor would be responsible for the damages and the replacement with no costs passed to the Government. If the damage/breakage was not caused by the contractor, then it would be considered normal wear and tear and replaced by the Government.  

20. Do you want the inside of all light fixtures dusted (flat acrylic, globes, recessed, lamps) and, if so, how often?

Yes, as required in the approved written Service Delivery/Schedule that is submitted by the successful contractor.  Minimum requirements are addressed in Appendix D.  

21. Each building and parts of buildings seems to have different expectations for the contractor.  For example, some rooms require dusting of cabinets, where as others don’t; in the library we understood that common areas were to be cleaned but we were also shown work and storage areas to be cleaned; also, study desks and visual equipment were pointed out as needing cleaning but no mention was made of the check-out desk which may or may not be considered an office desk which would not be cleaned.  When will we be receiving a more definitive statement of expectations by building?

Study desks, check out desk and visual equipment do not receive cleaning. The requirements for each building is determined by the technical proposal submitted for the Service delivery/schedule plan with minimum stated in Appendix D factoring the cleaning category.  Again, the Government’s minimum requirements are in Appendix D and the different categories of cleaning for each building is provided in Appendix A.  Building occupants may not realize at this time what those categories include/exclude; they will receive this information prior to the start of the new contract and will receive it again throughout the contract as needed.  This matter is also addressed in the PWS as valid customer complaint versus validated customer complaint.  A customer complaint is only validated if the work is authorized by the cleaning category; there may be times that a customer complains without realizing what they are complaining about is not covered under the category for their activity.   

22. When will we receive a layout map of each building defining areas to be cleaned and which Category level if more than one in a building?

The successful offeror will receive a layout map of each building defining areas during the phase-in time, the categories for each building is located in Appendix A.

23. What is the location of janitor storage facilities in each building and which are lockable?

The only janitor closets that are lockable are the Child Development Centers and they are also accessible by the building occupant, the rest are open to everyone to use.  There is no available data sheet detailing which buildings have closets or where those closets are in the buildings.  Also referenced in paragraph 4.8 in performance work statement.

24. It is essential that we receive scale drawn site maps and a precise location of the lay down area in order to price this project.  There is a very significant amount of non-productive time involved in transporting people and equipment between buildings, without detailed site maps it is not possible to factor in reasonable travel time.  When will we receive this detail?

The successful offeror will receive detailed maps after the award of the contract during phase-in.  The Government does not know which lay down area will be availability at this time.  It will be the responsibility of the successful contractor to plan the most effective and efficient means to transport people and equipment between buildings.  The site visit offered by the Government on 22 October 2003 should have given potential offerors, who elected to attend, the opportunity to get a idea of the size and lay out of Fort Lewis.  

25. The map must include the location of buildings located in North Fort Lewis and which are in the main Fort Lewis.  

The map will be issued during phase-in time. 

26. What is the average time required to pass through security when passing between these geographic areas? 

Once on Post you can get from Main Post to North Fort Lewis without going off post, with the exception of one building listed in Appendix “A” (Building MOOO1).

Due to unforeseen events, going through the security gate can change daily.  There is no way for the Government can predict those timeframes.  Much depends upon the efficiency of the contractor and if they have their vehicles and people properly identified and registered.    

27. What is the square footage of each type of floor covering in each building?  Since each type of floor covering requires different supplies and cleaning techniques this is essential for pricing and for answering clause 52.212-2, 1.1. “Operational Plan” a, b, c, d. 

We do not have this historical data.  The historical supplies  (Appendix C) can give you an idea of supplies with quantities that have been used in the past.

28. Is there any marble to be cleaned, how many sq. feet and frequency?

None that the Government is aware of at this time.  

29. In most buildings we were told that primary cleaning is confined to floors, however it seems that in the restrooms the cleaning includes walls that are tile or plastic covered.  Is that a correct statement, and, if so, do all restrooms have this wall covering cleaning requirements?  This information is essential to calculate time required and supplies needed.

1.3 – 1.4.4. In the Performance Work Statement addresses all that is to be accomplished in each area.

30. Does cleaning include chair rails, picture frames and other decorative features in any or all buildings?  If so, which ones?

1.3 – 1.4.4. In the Performance Work Statement addresses all that is to be accomplished.

31. In the Carey Theatre (bldg. 2163) is the contractor responsible for cleaning trash; popcorn boxes, candy wrappers, etc. off theater seats?

 1.3.9. Will be amended as follows.   To include cleaning trash, popcorn boxes, candy wrappers, etc. off theater seats.

32. What type of cleaning for showers is required (scaling, bacterial control, fungal control, etc.)?

1.4-1.4.4. In the Performance Work Statement addresses all that is to be accomplished for Restroom/Locker Room Cleaning.

33. What is the contractor’s role in recycling?  Do we move items to recycle areas, sort recyclables found in trash, etc.?

Contractor is not responsible for recycling.  If any possibly recyclable items are seen in the trash, the contractor should consider it trash.

34. Since it’s a fixed price contract why is a supply consumption list and monthly report required (with the exception of chemicals due to environmental concerns)?  In performance-based contracts this becomes proprietary information.

This information is used to provide historical data for Government use.  As was stated at the Pre-proposal conference the supply list is an attachment and not legally binding, it is provided for your informational use only.  

35. Is inside glass cleaning limited to 6 feet high from a flat area?

This information is referenced in the Performance Work Statement in Paragraph 1.3.3., 1.3.11., and 1.5.3.  

36. Is there any outside glass cleaning involved, how much and at what height? 

The only outside glass cleaning is for the Child Development Centers, which are one-story buildings.  The only other outside glass cleaning are exterior doors that have glass, such as Stone Education Building.

37. Is there any white board/black board cleaning and, if so, where and how many?

None.  

38. Are there any areas of cleaning where there is lead based paint or asbestos tiles?

The successful contractor will not buff asbestos tile floors. They can dust mop, damp mop, they can strip & wax the floors using a wet method.  There may be lead-based paint in the World War II buildings.   

39. Is there any outside policing required at entrances, courtyards, etc.?

Not unless it is mentioned in floor plan layout. There are a few places where the trashcans just outside the buildings are emptied.  This is very limited.  

40. In the recreation areas (i.e. Wilson Gym, etc.) is there equipment that needs to wiped down on a regular basis?

No equipment wipe down is required.

41. Are there any bodily fluids (blood, etc.) that must be cleaned up?  (consider locker rooms, sports areas, first aid stations, restrooms, etc.)

You are cleaning bathrooms.  It is logical to consider there will be instances of bodily fluids.  This contract is not a medical cleaning. The contractor should follow OSHA regulations.  

42. Are recreation areas to be cleaned open 24/7 or please define hours?

None of the recreation centers are open 24 hours.  If they are open 7 days a week, you will know the hours of operation due to schedule changes.

43. Are there hardwood floors to be cleaned in recreation areas, such as basket ball/handball courts, etc.?  If so, what are requirements?

Nelson Recreation Center has a hard wood floor, but they are only dust mopped and damp mopped.

44. Are there furniture to be moved like couches, coffee tables and other such large items?

It is referenced in paragraphs 1.5. –1.5.4 of the PWS.  

45. Would you provide accurate AWD job titles as they currently exist?

These job titles are from our current contract.

Janitor, Crew Leader, Floor Maintenance, Floor Supervisor, Secretary, Quality Control, Contract Manager.  These titles are not meant in any way to restrict the personnel utilized by the successful contractor.  The Government acknowledges that custodial contractors are experts in their field and will manage their personnel in the most efficient manner.  

46. Is each of the mods. (modules) in the CDCs the same relative to the amount of carpet, vinyl, ceramic, etc?

The four CDC’s that receive Category 4 cleaning are pretty much the same size and have basically the same floor plan.  

47. Does the separate CDC in Waller Hall require Cat 4 level of cleaning quality even though it is only cleaned occasionally? 

No. 

48. Please identify persons with chemical related allergies and which buildings they are currently in.  (according to the Am. Lung Assoc. anywhere from 6% to 23% of adults may be sensitive to odors, depending on many factors including the person’s age, a building’s construction, ventilation, type of odor, etc.) Once the contractor provides for the identified personnel;  new Fort Lewis employees, active military, spouses, etc. will arrive, how will the added cost of special non-odor supplies and storage be reimbursed as we have no way of determining, for pricing purposes, who or how many will require this special service nor where they will work? 

There are only a few that have been identified at this time, in buildings 2012, 2015, 2109.

With not knowing the future and this being a performance based contract, the contractor will have to factor this contingency into their proposal pricing.  There will not be any reimbursed costs for special supplies, added costs, and storage.  

49. What specific background check is required for persons who may work days in the CDCs?  What U.S. Army forms are required?

Using the Washington State Patrol forms.   www.watch.wsp.wa.gov
50. Reference: PWS 1.3, Basic Cleaning Service and PWS 1.5, Periodic Cleaning Service. 

Question:  Being that productivity rates vary with the different flooring types, can the square footage for the different flooring types, such as carpet, VCT, and ceramic tile for each of the facilities being serviced be provided?

No, there is no historical data that provides this information in the current contract or available to add to the solicitation.

51. Reference: PWS 1.4, Restrooms/Locker Rooms Cleaning. Appendix A, Estimated Workload with approximate square footage. 

Question: Appendix A provides square footage for restrooms in facilities that require restroom services only.  Can the government provide approximate square footage of restroom areas for all the other facilities? 

The Square feet for the buildings with restroom/locker room cleaning is combined. 

 No, there is no historical data that provides this information in the current contract or available to add to the solicitation.  See pictures on the DOC WEB site from the Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Visit (Public Works power point presentation).  Potential Offerors who elected to attend the conference and site visit were able to see some of these facilities for an idea of the different sizes.

 

52. Reference: PWS 1.5.3, Clean Interior Windows.

Question: Many of the facilities have window coverings such as mini blinds and vertical blinds.  Is the contractor required to clean window coverings as part of the basic or periodic service?

This will be addressed in the amendment in paragraph 1.3.10. It will be covered in the Child Development Center only.

53. Reference: PWS 3.1.1, "Laydown Area"

Question: Does the government intend to provide the same "Laydown Area" that is presently provided to the current contactor?
As was mentioned at the pre-proposal conference, the Government cannot ensure the same area will be available for the successful offeror’s use in the new contract.

The Government may not have been able to answer some of your questions fully as you would like.  Offerors should price their proposals to include any risks not covered by the information provided.   
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